
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA
 

Tuesday, August 12, 2014

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

2. Prayer

A Prayer will be offered by Councillor Given.

3. Confirmation of Minutes 1 - 16

Public Hearing - July 29, 2014
Regular Meeting - July 29, 2014

4. Bylaws Considered at Public Hearing

4.1 Bylaw No. 10987 (Z14-0018) - 1781 Capistrano Drive, Mehesh Raj Tripathi 17 - 17

To give Bylaw No. 10987 second and third readings and be adopted.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10989 (Z14-0017) - 815 Juniper Road, Brad Ferrell 18 - 19

To give Bylaw No. 10989 second and third readings.

4.3 Bylaw No. 10991 (Z14-0024) - 505 Doyle Avenue, Interior Health Authority 20 - 21

To give Bylaw No. 10991 second and third readings.

5. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the following items on the Agenda
were publicized.

6. Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Reports

6.1 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0092 - 2282 Aberdeen
Street, Amanda Lister & Timothy DeGroot

22 - 47

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the



required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a staff recommendation NOT to seek a Development Variance
Permit to vary the maximum height of a carriage house.

6.2 Bylaw No. 10403 (Z10-0044) - 120 Homer Road, Nathan Morden 48 - 48

To adopt Bylaw No. 10403 in order to rezone the subject property from the
RU1 - Large Lot Housing zone to the RM1 - Four Dwelling Housing zone.

6.2.1 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0137 & Development
Variance Permit Application No. DVP10-0076 - 120 Homer Road,
Nathan Morden

49 - 60

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. 
Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves
affected by the required variance(s) to come forward.
To vary the rear yard setback from 7.5m to 0.4m to legalize the
exisitng building located at 120 Homer Road.

6.3 Bylaw No. 10968 (OCP14-0006) - 560 & 582 McKay Avenue, 0781540 BC Ltd. 61 - 62

Requires a majority of all Members of Council (5).
To adopt Bylaw No. 10968 in order to change the Future Land Use designation
of the subject properties from the MRM - Multiple Unit Residential (Medium
Density) designation to the MXR - Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial)
designation.

6.3.1 Bylaw No. 10969 (Z14-0008) - 560 & 582 McKay Avenue, 0781540 BC
Ltd.

63 - 64

To adopt Bylaw No. 10969 in order to rezone the subject properties
from the RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to the C4 - Urban Centre
Commercial zone.

6.3.2 Development Permit Application No. DP14-0041 & Development
Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0042 - 560 & 582 McKay
Avenue, 0781540 BC Ltd.

65 - 89

City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received. 
Mayor to invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves
affected by the required variance(s) to come forward.
This Development Permit and Development Variance Permit
application is for the Form and Character of mixed-use
commercial/residential development to include 2 live-work units and a
total commercial floor area of 1,411 m2. The proposed variances
related to a temporary shortfall in parking and the lack of a loading
space.

6.4 Development Variance Permit Application No. DVP14-0104 - 375 Gibson Road,
Karmjit, Balvir & Avineet Gill

90 - 107



City Clerk to state for the record any correspondence received.  Mayor to
invite anyone in the public gallery who deems themselves affected by the
required variance(s) to come forward.
To consider a request to vary the maximum distance for an agricultural and
garden stand from 15.0 metres permitted to 6.0 metres proposed, in order to
achieve a smaller overall footprint within the configuration of the lot, in
accordance with the homeplating principles of the Official Community Plan.

7. Reminders

8. Termination



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 16, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (PMc) 

Application: DVP14-0092 Owner: 
Amanda Lister & Timothy 
DeGroot 

Address: 2282 Aberdeen Street Applicant: Timothy DeGroot 

Subject: Development Variance Permit  

Existing OCP Designation: Multiple Unit Residential – Low Density (MRL) 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

That Council NOT authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0092 for Lot 
22,  District Lot 136, ODYD, Plan 1172, located on 2282 Aberdeen Street, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT the variances to the following sections Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 NOT be granted: 
Section 9.5b.1(d) – Carriage House Regulations & Section 13.6.6(b)–RU6 Development Regulations: 
To vary the permitted height of a carriage house from 4.5m permitted to 6.15m proposed. 

2.0 Purpose  

To consider a staff recommendation NOT to seek a Development Variance Permit to vary the 
maximum height of a carriage house. 

3.0 Urban Planning 

The subject property is zoned RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing, which permits carriage houses as a 
permitted secondary use. 

Staff does not support the proposed height variance to the carriage house on the subject 
property, as the proposed height exceeds not only the current regulation, but also that of the 
proposed carriage house height amendments that received first reading by Council on July 14, 
2014.  

There is an example of a carriage house development located to the west, across the lane from 
the subject property.  This carriage house was developed in 1998, and is approximately 6.0m 
high, as was permitted under the regulation of the day.   

22



DVP14-0092– Page 2 

 
 

Carriage houses were approved at 6.0m until 2002 when Council amended the zoning bylaw to 
reduce carriage house height to 4.5m.  The current height restrictions of 4.5m limit the second 
floor in new carriage houses to predominately sloped roof styles.  

The changes proposed to the carriage house height regulations focus on a clearer reference to 
the size and location of dormers, as well as an increase to the maximum allowable height of a 
carriage house.  The proposed change to the dormer regulation removes the maximum 1.2m 
width and increases the amount of a dormer feature to a maximum of 50% of the width of the 
roof in order to improve the usefulness of the space.  The change in accessory building height 
regulation increases the maximum height to 4.8m. in order to accommodate the use of an attic 
style truss for 1½ storey carriage houses without requiring a variance to building height.  
However, this proposed carriage house under application exceeds both of the proposed changes 
to the regulation as well as the current regulations. 

To fulfill Council Policy No. 367 for public consultation, the applicant spoke to a number of 
neighbours, and provided signed documents stating that they had reviewed documents and 
drawings for the proposed development at 2282 Aberdeen St, and that they are in favour/support 
of the project.  No major issues were identified during consultation from neighbouring parcels.  

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The subject property currently has a small, single storey dwelling, constructed in early 1960’s. 

4.2 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to construct a new 2½ storey principal dwelling on the subject 
property fronting Aberdeen Street.  As part of the building program for the subject property, the 
applicant is also proposing to construct a 2 storey carriage house, with a 2 bay garage on the 
ground floor, and a one bedroom suite on the second level.  

The proposed building design incorporates a sloped roof design element at a 12:12 slope at the 
north and south ends of the building, facing the adjacent properties.  However, owing to the 
orientation of the proposed roof ridgeline parallel to the lane, the dominant dormer elements 
will be facing both the lane and the common open space between the buildings. 

Due to the design of the proposed carriage house and the large shed style dormers on each side 
of the building exceeding 1.2m in width, the building height has to be measured to the roof of 
the dormers, in this case at 6.14m.  The windows of the dormers face the lane and the shared 
rear yard of the principle dwelling. 

The RU1 zone limits accessory buildings height to a maximum building height of 4.5m.  As well, 
the definition of height in section 6.6.4 of the Zoning Bylaw states that; 

The height of dormers will be measured as if they are the main roof, unless the 
dormers are limited to 2 dormers per elevation, with a maximum width of 1.2m each 
and a minimum 1m separation.  The total width of the dormers may not exceed 50% 
of the horizontal width of the building elevation on which they are located. 

In this case, the proposed shed dormers are designed to occupy 100% of the building frontage.  
Therefore the building height has to be measured as if the dormers are the main roof. 

The building form and character of the carriage house incorporates a substantial number of 
design features of the principal dwelling in terms of materials and colour choices which will serve 
to tie the two buildings together aesthetically. 

23



DVP14-0092– Page 3 

 
 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located in an established neighbourhood of older, modest dwellings.  
However, there are a number of properties that are being redeveloped with larger dwellings.  
There are several accessory buildings constructed off the lane in the area.  As well, there is a 
newer, two storey dwelling constructed across Aberdeen St. from the subject property. 

 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single unit dwelling 

East RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Two unit dwelling 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single unit dwelling 

West RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Dwelling and carriage house 

 

Subject Property Map:   2282 Aberdeen Street 
 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis Table 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA RU6 ZONE REQUIREMENTS PROPOSAL 

Site Details 
Lot Area 400m2 525 m2 

Lot Width 13m 14.6 m 

Lot Depth 30m 35.8 m 

Site Coverage Buildings 40% 207.6m² = 39.5% 

Site Coverage Buildings, 
Driveways and parking 

50% 236.8m² = 45% 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 

Existing “overheight”  
1998 Carriage House 

24



DVP14-0092– Page 4 

 
 

Principal Dwelling details 
Setbacks   

Front Yard 4.5m 4.5 m 

Side Yard (south) 2.3m 2.4m 

Side Yard (north) 2.3m 2.4m 

Rear Yard 7.5m 17m 

Height of buildings/number of 
storeys 

9.5m / 2½ Storeys 9.0m / 2½ Storeys 

Total floor area n/a 326.5 

Carriage House details 
Total floor area of carriage 

house 
90m² 55.7m² 

Setbacks   

Front Yard 9.0 m  27 m 

Side Yard (south) 2.3m 2.00m 

Side Yard (north) 2.3m 3.49 m 

Rear Yard 1.5m 1.5 m 

Height of carriage house 4.5m  6.15m 

Distance Between buildings 4.5 8.3m 

Lot coverage of carriage house 14% = 73.5 66.89 

Number of on-site parking stalls 3 3 

Size of on-site parking stalls   

Private Open Space per unit 30m² 30 m² 

 Indicates a requested variance to allowable height of carriage house 

5.0 Current Development Policies 

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Sensitive Infill.2 Encourage new development or redevelopment in existing residential areas to 
be sensitive to or reflect the character of the neighbourhood with respect to building design, 
height, and siting. 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comment. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

This development variance permit application to vary the height from 4.5 to 6.14m does 
not compromise any municipal services.  

                                                
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 
2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.22.6 (Development Process Chapter). 

25



DVP14-0092– Page 5 

 
 

6.3 Fire Department 

The fire department has no concerns in regards to the height variance. Please ensure that 
the requirements of section 9.10.19 Smoke Alarms of the BCBC 2012 are to be met. If a 
fence is ever constructed between the dwellings (house and carriage house) a gate with a 
clear width of 1100mm is required. Any gate is to open without special knowledge. 
Additional visible address is required from Aberdeen St. Emergency access is from the 
main roadway and not the lane to the west side of the drawing. 

6.4 FortisBC Gas  

No concerns. 

6.5 FortisBC electric 

No response.  

6.6 IPlan - Parks and Places 

No comment. 

6.7 Real Estate and Building Services 

No comment. 

6.8 Shaw Cable 

Interests unaffected. 

6.9 Telus 

 No comment regarding this application. 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received: May 12, 2014 
 
 

 

8.0 Alternate Recommendation  

That Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0092 for Lot 22,  
District Lot 136, ODYD, Plan 1172, located on 2282 Aberdeen Street, Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT the variance to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
Section 9.5b.1(d) – Carriage House Regulations & Section 13.6.6(b)–RU6 Development Regulations: 
To vary the permitted height of a carriage house from 4.5m permitted to 6.15m proposed. 
  

26



DVP14-0092– Page 6 

 
 

 

Report prepared by: 

 

     
Paul McVey, Urban Planner  
 
 
 

Reviewed by:    Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved for Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments:  

Location map 
Site Plan/ Landscape Plan 
Floor Plans 
Conceptual Elevations 
Rationale letter 
Context/Site Photos 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 7/23/2014 

RIM No. 1940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (AC) 

Application: Z10-0044 DVP10-0076 DP14-0137 Owner: Nathan Morden 

Address: 120 Homer Road Applicant: Nathan Morden 

Subject: Development Variance Permit and Development Permit Application 

Existing OCP Designation: MRL – Multiple Residential, Low Density 

Existing Zone: RM1 – Four Dwelling Housing   

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Final Adoption of Zoning Amending Bylaw No. 10403 be considered by Council. 

AND THAT Council authorize the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP10-0076 and 
Development Permit DP14-0137 for Lot 13 Section 27 Township 26 ODYD Plan 14897, except Plan 
39705, located at 120 Homer Road, Kelowna BC. 

AND THAT a variance to the following section of the Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 

Section 13.7.6 – Development Regulations 

To vary the rear yard setback from 7.5m to 0.4m;  

AND THAT the Development Permit No. DP14-0137 be subject to: 

The dimensions and siting of the building, the landscaping, and the exterior design / finish to be 
constructed on the land be in general accordance with Schedule "A”: 

2.0 Purpose  

To vary the rear yard setback from 7.5m to 0.4m to legalize the existing building located at 120 
Homer Road.  

3.0 Urban Planning  

The proposed variance is required as a result of rezoning application Z10-0044. The non-
conforming status of the original dwelling is only protected under the non-conforming sections of 
the Local Government Act when the use and density do not change. A variance is needed to 
legalize the existing location of the original dwelling because the use and density have changed. 
Staff support the proposed Development Variance Permit.  

49



Z10-0044 DVP10-0076 & DP14-0137 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

An addition to the original dwelling was approved through a Building Permit issued in 2005, which 
added approximately 2600ft2 of floor area.  The property has an open Bylaw Enforcement file 
regarding illegal dwelling units. 

The property is currently zoned RU1 – Large Lot Housing, however, there are 3 illegal units in the 
single-family dwelling.  The original dwelling has a three-bedroom unit located in the basement.  
The addition approved in 2005 allowed for a three-car garage with living space behind and above, 
however, these additional spaces have been converted into a one-bedroom and a three-bedroom 
unit respectively.  In total, the property contains four separate dwelling units.  The property was 
sold to a new owner who bought the property in 2011-2012 and the new owner has been 
attempting to resolve the outstanding legalization issues ever since.  

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the north side of Hwy 33 W near Gerstmar Road and west of 
the Rutland Urban Centre boundary.  Specifically, the adjacent zones and uses are:  

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU1 – Large Lot Housing Single Family Housing 

East RM3 – Low Density Multiple Housing Townhomes 

South 
RM4 – Transitional Low Density Housing 
C1 – Local Commercial 

Apartment Complex 
Gas Bar 

West P2 – Educational & Major Institutional Religious Assembly 

 
4.3 Site Location Map 

Subject property: 120 Homer Road 

 

Subject Property 

50



Z10-0044 DVP10-0076 & DP14-0137 – Page 3 

 
 

5.0 Zoning Analysis Table  

The application meeting the requirements of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 (with the noted variance) as 
follows: 

Criteria Proposal RM1 Zone Requirements 

Subdivision Requirements 

Site Area (m²) 1389m2 800m2 

Site Width (m) 30.83m 22.0m 

Site Depth (m) 46.42m 30.0m 

Development Regulations 

Site Coverage (%) 24% (39%) 
40% (50% including buildings, 

driveways and parking areas) 

F.A.R. .41 0.6 

Height (m) 6.6m 9.5m 

Storeys (#) 2 storeys 2.5 storeys 

Required Setbacks 

Front (Hwy 33)  11.75m 15.0m  

Rear (north)  3.53m 7.5m 

Flanking Side (Homer) 8.5m 4.5m (6.0m to garage/carport) 

Side (west) 4.4m 2.5m 

Other Regulations 

Private Open Space Exceeds requirements 
4 units x 25 m2 

Total: 100 m2 

Parking Spaces (#) 7 spaces 

3-three bedroom units x 2 spaces 

1 bachelor unit x 1 space 

Total: 7 spaces 

 Indicates a variance to the required rear yard from 7.5m required to 0.43m proposed. 

6.0 Technical Comments   

Building & Permitting 

 See Z10-0044 

Development Engineering 

 See Z10-0044 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date of Application Received:      May 18, 2010 
Date of Neighbourhood Consultation Received (re: variance):  n/a 

 

 

 

51



Z10-0044 DVP10-0076 & DP14-0137 – Page 4 

 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Adam Cseke, Planner  
 

Reviewed by:   Lindsey Ganczar, Urban Planning Supervisor 
 

Approved Inclusion:  Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 

Attachments: 

Subject Property Map 
Development Variance Permit and Development Permit 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: 8/12/2014 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Urban Planning, Community Planning & Real Estate (RS) 

Application: DP14-0041/DVP14-0042 Owner: 
0781540 BC Ltd.,             
Inc. No. BC0781540 

Address: 560 & 582 McKay Avenue Applicant: 
G Group Land Development 
(Andrew Gaucher) 

Subject: Development Permit and Development Variance Permit Applications 

Existing OCP Designation: MRM – Multiple Unit Residential (Medium Density) 

Proposed OCP Designation: MXR – Mixed Use (Residential/Commercial) 

Existing Zone: RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 

Proposed Zone: C4 – Urban Centre Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT final adoption of Official Community Plan Amending Bylaw No.10968 be considered by 
Council; 

 
THAT final adoption of Zone Amending Bylaw No. 10969 be considered by Council;  
  
AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Permit No. DP14-0041 for of Lots 12 
and 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769 located on 560 and 582 McKay Avenue, Kelowna, BC 
subject to the following:  
 
1. The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general 
accordance with Schedule “A”;  
 
2. The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land, be in general 
accordance with Schedule “B”; 
 

65



DVP14-0041/DVP14-0042 – Page 2 

 
 

 

3. Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”;  
 
4. The applicant be required to post with the City, a Landscape Performance Security deposit in 
the form of a “Letter of Credit” in the amount of 125% of the estimated value of the landscaping, 
as determined by a professional landscaper;  
 
AND THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0042, for 
Lots 12 and 13, District Lot 14, ODYD, Plan 3769, located on 560 and 582 McKay Avenue, 
Kelowna, BC;  
 
AND THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted:  
 
Section 8: Off-Street Vehicle Parking / Table 8.1: Parking Schedule 
 
To vary the parking from 28 stalls required to 22 stalls proposed. 
 
Section 8.2: Off-Street Loading 
 
To vary the requirement to provide off-street loading spaces for new development to allow the 
development to proceed with no loading spaces. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the applicant be required to complete the above-noted conditions within 180 
days of Council’s approval of the Development Permit Development Variance Permit Applications, 
in order for the permits to be issued. 

2.0 Purpose  

This Development Permit and Development Variance Permit application is for the Form and 
Character of mixed-use commercial/residential development to include 2 live-work units and a 
total commercial floor area of 1,411 m2. The proposed variances related to a temporary shortfall 
in parking and the lack of a loading space. 

3.0 Urban Planning Department 

The Urban Planning Department supports both Development Permit and Development Permit 
applications. Overall the project will foster a mix of uses including retail, office space, and a 
residential component that will support the pedestrian-friendly environment envisioned for the 
South Pandosy area, and will contribute to achieving a highly urbanized concentration of 
complementary land uses.  

The proposed mixed-use building displays good quality architecture and an conscious gestures to 
connect to the public realm. The building integrates a number of deck spaces to serve as 
gathering areas for future building occupants and to activate building elevations, notably 
adjacent to the proposed pedestrian connection and Osprey Park. The proposed building 
materials will add visual interest to the building and appear to complement the architectural 
theme.  

Staff would also like to highlight that the proposal is consistent with City policies to maximize 
and secure pedestrian and cycling connectivity with the provision of an ultimate 6m wide, east-
west connection through the development site to Osprey Park, as well as landscaped 
plaza/seating area at the building’s southwest corner adjacent to McKay Avenue.  

66



DVP14-0041/DVP14-0042 – Page 3 

 
 

During analysis of the file, planning staff seriously considered the development variance permit 
request for reduced parking provision in phase 1 of the development. A recent parking study in 
the South Pandosy area has made staff are aware that many residents and businesses are 
concerned about parking shortages. While the developer is unable to accommodate the required 
28 stalls in phase 1, a commitment (by means of easement) to provide the shortfall of 6 stalls in 
phase 2 has been considered by staff and appears to be a good short term compromise to allow 
the development to proceed. Should the applicant not be able to accommodate the required 
parking in phase 2, a cash-in-lieu payment to the City of Kelowna would be required. 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

On November 3, 2009, OCP Amendment and Rezoning applications (under OCP07-0032 and Z07-
0093) for the four properties at 560, 561, 582 and 583 McKay Avenue received 2nd and 3rd reading, 
following the Public Hearing held on the same date. Under these applications, the same 
developer as the present proposed to amend the OCP designation to Commercial and to rezone to 
the C4 zone to facilitate the development of a 4-storey mixed-use development at 560 & 
582 McKay Avenue and 561 & 583 McKay Avenue, with 4 live-work units and a total commercial 
floor area of 3,703 m2. The proposed development was to be constructed over an under-building 
parking structure partially set into the ground, and arranged on either side of a central courtyard 
area. Under conditions of adoption, it was required that the McKay Avenue roadway be closed 
and consolidated with the four properties, with a public access right-of-way secured over the 
central courtyard to maintain an east-west public pedestrian link with Osprey Park. Additionally, 
a new, north-south local road connection was required as an extension of McKay Avenue south to 
Osprey Avenue.  

Council has subsequently approved several extensions to these 2007 applications, with the latest 
extension having recently expired on May 3, 2014. In tandem with the subject applications under 
consideration, staff is advancing a report to rescind 2nd and 3rd reading of the 2007 applications. 
Council recently considered updated OCP Amendment and Rezoning Applications at the June 10, 
2014 public hearing and after this meeting, advanced both to 3rd reading. 

4.2 Project Description 

Subsequent to the 2007 applications, the developer now wishes to revise the proposal to phase 
the proposed development, and proceed with the first phase at 560 & 582 McKay Avenue. When 
the developer wishes to proceed with the second phase of the development at 561 & 583 McKay 
Avenue, separate OCP Amendment and Rezoning applications will need to be submitted at that 
time for Council consideration. It is anticipated that the second phase would mirror the design of 
the first phase, and potentially be connected by elevated walkways over the pedestrian walkway. 

Under the subject applications for phase one, the developer is proposing to develop the 
properties at 560 & 582 McKay Avenue with a 3-storey mixed-use building, to include 2 live-work 
units and a total commercial floor area of 1,411 m2. (The developer has indicated that a 
minimum of a further 2 live-work units will be included in the project’s second phase). The live-
work and smaller commercial units are located at grade toward the front (west end) of the 
building. Parking is provided at grade under-building toward the rear (east end) of the building, 
with access from the north lane.  

As part of the subject development proposal for phase one, the developer proposes to close and 
consolidate the portion of McKay Avenue roadway adjacent to the subject site. As in the earlier 
2007 proposal, a public access right-of-way is required to be secured within this former roadway 
to maintain an east-west public pedestrian connection with Osprey Park. In the interim, until 

67



DVP14-0041/DVP14-0042 – Page 4 

 
 

phase two of the development proceeds, it is proposed that fire access to phase one also be 
accommodated within the former McKay Avenue roadway (see attached site plan). 

The proposed mixed-use building is presently conceived of as a stepped, flat-roof contemporary 
design, transitioning from one storey at the east end of the building up to 3 storeys. The building 
integrates a number of deck spaces to serve as gathering areas for future building occupants and 
to activate building elevations, notably adjacent to the proposed pedestrian connection and 
Osprey Park. The proposed building materials are primarily stucco, corrugated metal cladding, 
and pre-finished metal panels, in combination with aluminium frame glazing. Along the building’s 
rear elevation adjacent to Osprey Park, the at-grade, under-building parking area will be 
screened and secured by a stainless steel grille, with regular vertical break elements to provide 
visual interest. A 1.5 m landscape buffer, with columnar trees and grasses, will further screen 
the building’s parking area from the park.  

The majority of the proposed east-west pedestrian connection will be constructed with phase one 
(at approx. 4.5 m of the ultimate 6 m width) – the remaining 1.5 m will be constructed at phase 
two. The connection includes a feature landscape/sculptural element and seating area adjacent 
to the McKay Avenue frontage, and the proposed surface is to be a broom-finish, saw-cut 
concrete with concrete banding. Bollards placed along the east and west ends of the pedestrian 
connection will ensure no vehicular access through this area.  

A Development Variance Permit is required to vary the required parking for phase one of the 
development from 28 spaces required to 22 spaces proposed, and to vary the number of loading 
spaces from 1 required to 0 provided. The developer proposes to accommodate the 6 varied 
parking spaces for phase one within the project’s second phase, upon construction. Council will 
have an opportunity to consider the associated Development Permit and Development Variance 
Permit applications pending favourable consideration of the land use.  

4.3 Site Context 

The subject properties are located in an area of transition between Pandosy Street and Osprey 
Park in the South Pandosy Urban Centre area. The area is designated for future Multiple Unit 
Residential (Medium Density) development. Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Specifically, adjacent land uses are as follows: 

Orientation Zoning Land Use 

North RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing Single Family Residential 
East P3 – Parks & Open Space Osprey Park 

South RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing 
Single Family Residential & Public 
Parking 

West C4- Urban Centre Commercial Mixed Use & Commercial 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

68



DVP14-0041/DVP14-0042 – Page 5 

 
 

Subject Property Map: 560 and 582 McKay Avenue 

 

 

4.4 Zoning Analysis 

The project compares the requirements of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 as follows: 

 

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
C4 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
RM5 ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 

PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Site Area 460 m2 460 m2 
1,646 m2  

(Consolidated) 

Development Regulations 

Floor Area Ratio 
1.5 FAR Permitted 
1.3 – mixed use project 
0.2 – covered parking 

1.3 FAR Permitted 
1.1 – base density 

0.2 covered parking 

 
0.86 

Height 15 m / 4 storeys 15 m / 4 storeys 15 m / 3 storeys 

Front Yard (E) 0 m 6.0 m  1.12 m 

Side Yard (S) 2.0 m (abutting RU6 zone) 7.5 m Approx. 13 m 

Subject 

Properties 

Road Closure Area, 
incl. proposed 

pedestrian 
connection & temp. 

fire lane 

69



DVP14-0041/DVP14-0042 – Page 6 

 
 

Side Yard (N) 0 m 7.5 m 0 m 

Rear Yard (W) 0 m 9.0 m 1.5 m 

Other Regulations 
Minimum Parking Requirements Min. 28 spaces 22 spaces  

Bicycle Parking 4 class I / 10 class II  Meets requirements 

Private Open Space 6 m2 (per bachelor unit) Meets requirements 

Loading Space 1 space 0 spaces 
 

 Indicates a requested variance to vary parking from 28 spaces required to 22 spaces provided. 

 Indicates a requested variance to vary loading from 1 space required to 0 spaces provided. 

 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Compact Urban Form.1 Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will be done by 
increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs located within a 400 metre 
walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of transit service) through 
development, conversion, and re-development within Urban Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular 
and existing areas as per the provisions of the Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1. 

Policy 5.8.1 – Public Space. Integrate safe, high-quality, human-scaled, multi-use public spaces, 
such as parks, plazas, and squares as part of development or redevelopment within Urban and 
Village Centres.  

Policy 5.10.1 – Maximize Pedestrian / Cycling Connectivity. Require that pedestrian and cyclist 
movement and infrastructure be addressed in the review and approval of all City and private 
sector developments, including provision of sidewalks and trails and recognition of frequently 
used connections and informal pedestrian routes. With new developments, require dedication of 
on-site walking and cycling paths where necessary to provide links to adjacent parks, schools, 
transit stops, recreation facilities, employment nodes, cul-de-sacs and large activity areas. 
 
Policy 5.11.1 - Parking Relaxations. Consider parking requirement relaxations, in areas that are 
not part of a cash-in-lieu program, where an approved TDM strategy indicates a lower use of 
vehicles and the City is satisfied that parking relaxations would not create parking spill-over 
problems on adjoining neighbourhood streets. Parking relaxations will not be considered in 
hillside areas (as defined on Map 4.1 - Future Land Use). 
 
Policy 5.25.3 – Office Building Location. Encourage office buildings providing more than 929 m2 
of useable space to locate in the City Centre or the Town Centres. This policy does not include 
offices integral to business park/industrial uses and “corporate offices” allowable under relevant 
industrial zones. 
 
Policy 5.27.2 - Offices Near Transit. Direct new office development to areas served by public 
transit. 
 

                                                      
1 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Policy 5.2.3 (Development Process Chapter). 

70



DVP14-0041/DVP14-0042 – Page 7 

 
 

Policy 5.40.1 - Evaluation Checklist. Evaluate development applications that require an OCP 
Amendment on the basis of the extent to which they comply with underlying OCP objectives, 
including the following: 

 

 Does the proposed development contribute to preserving lands with slopes greater than 
30%? N/A 

 Does the proposed development respect the OCP Permanent Growth Boundary (OCP Maps 
4.1 and 5.2)? Yes 

 Does the proposed development feature a mix of residential, employment, institutional, 
and/or recreational uses within individual buildings or larger development projects? Yes 

 Is the proposed development located in an Urban Centre? Yes 

 Does the proposed development increase the supply of affordable (as defined in the OCP) 
apartments or townhouses? No 

 Is the property serviced with water and City sanitary sewer at the time of application? Yes 

 Could the proposed project be built at no financial cost to the City? (This should consider 
operational and maintenance costs.) Yes 

 Would the proposed project help decrease the rate of travel by private automobile, 
especially during peak hours? Yes - the proposed development would locate employment 
uses in an urban centre and near transit. 

 Is there transit service within 400 m of non-residential projects or major employment 
generators (50+ employees)? Yes 

 Does the proposed project involve redevelopment of currently under-utilized, urbanized 
land? Yes. 

 Does the proposed project result in the creation of substantially more public open space 
than would be available if the development were not to proceed (not including required 
open space dedications or non-developable areas)? No 

 Is there a deficiency of properties within the applicable Sector (see Map 5.4) that already 
have the required OCP designation? No 

 Does the project avoid negative impacts (shadowing, traffic, etc.) on adjoining properties 
where those adjoining properties are not slated for land use changes? Yes 

 Is the project consistent with the height principles established in the OCP? Yes 

 If the project goes ahead, would surrounding property owners be likely to develop their 
properties as per OCP Future Land Use and other City policy provisions? Yes 

 Would the additional density or new land use designation enhance the surrounding 
neighbourhood in a way that the current land use designation does not? No 

 Could the project be supported without over-burdening existing park and other 
community resources or threatening the viability of existing neighbourhood resources? Yes 

6.0 Technical Comments 

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

Building related comments will be provided at time of Development Permit application. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Refer to attached Development Engineering Department Memorandum, dated March 10, 2014. 

6.3 Fire Department 

Rezoning approval is based on adequate fire department access. Fire Department access is 
required to be a minimum of 6 m and the turning radius on to the east access lane adequate to 

71



DVP14-0041/DVP14-0042 – Page 8 

 
 

accommodate a fire truck (BCBC 3.2.5.6). Additional comments will be required with the 
development permit application. 

6.4 Parks & Public Places Department 

 Ensure spacing of bollards on McKay Avenue and Osprey Park frontages prevents access by 
motor vehicles.  

 Based on TAC standards for two-way bike travel, provide along the pedestrian walkway a 
clear lane of travel of a min. 4 m without obstruction, such as bicycles and bicycle racks.  

 Provide a cross-section to scale that spans the eastern property line and includes grading 
information for the parkade, planting bed, plant material, and park.  

 Provide a detail of the proposed parking screen along the park frontage including information 
on proposed dimensions and material specifications. 

6.5 Interior Health Authority 

This application is located in the South Pandosy area and has been identified as a growth area 
within the OCP. Interior Health is in support of the application as it aligns with the concept of 
creation of mixed land use and improved health outcomes. 

Neighbourhoods with mixed land use and access to schools, civic services, green space, retail, 
employment opportunities, and residential can improve opportunities to engage in physical 
activity (walking, cycling) and a reduction in vehicle miles travelled. The research has shown that 
there is strong link between mixed land use and reduction in unintentional injury, mental health 
issues, and premature mortality. There is indirect evidence that creation of mixed land use 
reduces obesity and body mass index. 

All of these health impacts help to begin the shift towards healthier behaviours and a healthier 
population. 

6.6 FortisBC (Electric) 

There are primary distribution facilities along the subject site's west (neighbouring property) and 
north (laneway) property lines. There are also primary distribution facilities within McKay Avenue 
but do not extend along the subject site's frontage. The applicant is responsible for costs 
associated with any change to the subject property's existing service, if any, as well as the 
provision of appropriate land rights where required. Otherwise, FortisBC Inc. (Electric) has no 
concerns with this circulation. 

In order to initiate the design process, the customer must call 1-866-4FORTIS (1-866-436-7847).  
It should be noted that additional land rights issues may arise from the design process but can be 
dealt with at that time, prior to construction.   

6.7 Shaw Cable 

Shaw Communications’ interests are unaffected. The applicant should contact Shaw regarding 
future cable services. 

6.8 TELUS 

TELUS will provide underground facilities to this development. Developer will be required to 
supply and install conduit as per TELUS policy. 

 

72



DVP14-0041/DVP14-0042 – Page 9 

 
 

7.0 Application Chronology  

Date Original Applications Received: November 1, 2007 
Date Current Application Received:  February 21, 2014 
Advisory Planning Commission:   September 1, 2009 
Public Hearing for Updated Rezoning: June 10, 2014 
Rezoning Conditions completed:  July 23, 2014 
 

Report prepared by: 

     
Ryan Smith, Urban Planning Manager 
 
Approved for Inclusion  
 

 D.Gilchrist, Div. Director of Community Planning and Real Estate 
 

Attachments:  

Site Plan 

Conceptual Elevations 
Landscape Plan 
Context/Site Photos 
 

73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: July 28, 2014 

RIM No. 0940-50 

To: City Manager 

From: Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services (MS) 

Application: DVP14-0104 Owners: 
Karmjit S. Gill 
Balvir K. Gill  
Avineet S. Gill 

Address: 375 Gibson Road Applicant: Robert Holden 

Subject: Development Variance Permit   

Existing OCP Designation: Resource Protection Area 

Existing Zone: A1 - Agricultural 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Council authorizes the issuance of Development Variance Permit No. DVP14-0104, for Lot 4, 
Section 25 TWP 26, ODYD Plan 1760 Except Plan KAP60715, located on 375 Gibson Road, 
Kelowna, BC; 
 
AND THAT variance to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be granted: 
 
         Section 11.1.6 (f): Development Regulations 
 
To vary the maximum distance for an agricultural and garden stand from 15.0 metres permitted 
to any lot line to 6.0 metres proposed. 

2.0 Purpose   

To consider a request to vary the maximum distance for an agricultural and garden stand from 
15.0 metres permitted to 6.0 metres proposed, in order to achieve a smaller overall footprint 
within the configuration of the lot, in accordance with the homeplating principles of the Official 
Community Plan.  

3.0 Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 

Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment (SAE) staff are supportive of the proposed variance of the 
reduction of the maximum distance to the lot line from 15.0 metres to 6.0 metres for the fruit 
stand. The proposed change results in a significant improvement to the layout of the proposed 
parking and access lanes for the associated agri-tourism accommodation sites, resulting in the 
preservation of agricultural land. The owners have agreed to provide landscaping to the north of 

90



DVP14-0104 – Page 2 

 
 

the fruit stand, as well as landscaping buffers towards the orchard and the house, as part of 
Development Permit # DP14-0028. 

In order to accommodate the fruit stand and parking facilities, a variance to the front and side 
yard setbacks for the zone will be required.  Staff support the required variance as it assists with 
the objective of leaving intact as much agricultural lands as possible (e.g. homeplating). 

The Official Community Plan 2030 states: 

On agricultural lands, where appropriate, locate all buildings and structures, including farm 
help housing and farm retail sales, within a contiguous area (i.e. homeplate). Exceptions may be 
permitted where the buildings or structures are for farm use only1. 
 
Map 1. Proposed Fruit Stand with Associated RV Sites 

 
 
  

                                                
1
 City of Kelowna, 2012. Official Community Plan – Section 15 – Farm Protection Development Permit Guidelines. 

http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CBylaws%5COfficial%20Community%20Plan%202030%20Bylaw%20No.%2010500/Chapter%2015%
20-%20Farm%20Protection%20DP%20Guidelines.pdf 

Front Yard  
Setback Request 
6.0 metres 

Side Yard  
Setback Request 
6.0 metres 

Fruit Stand - 
Proposed  

91

http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CBylaws%5COfficial%20Community%20Plan%202030%20Bylaw%20No.%2010500/Chapter%2015%20-%20Farm%20Protection%20DP%20Guidelines.pdf
http://www.kelowna.ca/CityPage/Docs/PDFs/%5CBylaws%5COfficial%20Community%20Plan%202030%20Bylaw%20No.%2010500/Chapter%2015%20-%20Farm%20Protection%20DP%20Guidelines.pdf


DVP14-0104 – Page 3 

 
 

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Background 

The applicant, through Rezoning Application # Z14-0007, has requested permission from City 
Council to rezone the parcel located at 375 Gibson Road to allow for the addition of Agri-tourist 
Accommodation (A1t).  The rezoning application has been supported by Council, through 2nd and 
3rd Reading, and the applicant is in the process of removing the conditions for 4th Reading, which 
include: 

 Farm Development Permit for landscape buffering the agri-tourist accommodation sites; 

 Farm Help Permit for the existing 80 square metre dwelling on the property; and 

 A Development Variance Permit to allow for a 6.0 m distance to the front and side yard 
property lines. 

4.2 Project Description 

The owner is concurrently planning on building a residence for his family, and a fruit stand on the 
property. A primary residence is an allowed use in accordance with the Agricultural Land Reserve 
Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation2 (the Regulation). Retail sales, if at least 50% of the 
produce comes from the farm, are considered a farm use, and can be regulated, but not 
prohibited by local government.  Therefore, the construction of the fruit stand and the residence 
will be subject to a building permit, are permitted under the Regulation. 
 

The applicant is also proposing to establish an agri-tourism operation to supplement his farm 
income. The RV campsite is part of an overall integrated plan for the orchard. The vision is to 
also build a fruit stand, to sell produce only from this farm and other local orchards that are 
owned and / or leased.  The agri-tourism RV sites are proposed adjacent to the fruit stand, and 
the applicant envisions that the fruit stand and RV uses would complement each other. The fruit 
stand building would also function as an education centre, as an amenity space for RV visitors 
and as a hall to provide tours and information sessions about farming. The applicant plans to 
instruct and inform visitors, as well as school groups, customers of the fruit stand and the general 
public about farming in the Okanagan.  Topics to be included are noted below: 

 The history of each fruit produced; 

 The process and tools involved in producing the fruit; 

 The types of fruit available of each variety; 

 The ideal use of each fruit, and how to tell freshness of the product; and 

 A graphic display of the varieties and types of fruit. 
 
The subject property is fully planted with 9 ha (22 ac) ha of apples. The owner has undertaken 
significant investment in the orchard in the last several years, by grading some of the steep 
slopes to make it easier to farm.  At purchase, there was a main residence, a mobile home, a 
small greenhouse and a number of sheds at the southeast corner of the property (See Map 3, 
below).  The applicant has removed the existing structures and debris under a demolition permit.  
The proposal includes siting the fruit stand and RV site in this same corner, which has been 
significantly disturbed.  The proposal also includes building a main residence just to the north of 
the RV site, for the applicant and his family, along Gibson Road.  There is a small, 60 m2 dwelling 

                                                
2 ALC, 2004. ALC Use, Subdivision and Procedure Regulation, http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/Reg/ALR_Use-Subd-
Proc_Reg.htm#sec2 (Accessed March 5, 2013). 

 

92

http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/Reg/ALR_Use-Subd-Proc_Reg.htm#sec2
http://www.alc.gov.bc.ca/legislation/Reg/ALR_Use-Subd-Proc_Reg.htm#sec2


DVP14-0104 – Page 4 

 
 

at the northwest corner of the property that is used for farm help. Fencing and landscaping has 
been proposed along the neighbour’s property line immediately to the east, and trees and shrubs 
are proposed to provide a vegetated buffer between the RV campsite and the orchard. There is a 
small, 60 m2 dwelling at the northwest corner of the property that is used for farm help. 

4.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at 375 Gibson Road along the upper Rutland Bench in the eastern 
part of the City.  Twelve rural residential lots are near the subject property to the northwest 
(see Map 2) while several rural residential lots are directly to the south.  The property underwent 
a homesite severance subdivision in 1997. 

The subject property is in the ALR: land use to the north, east, south and southeast is 
agricultural and is surrounded completely by properties in the ALR (see Map 4). The subject 
property is also within the Black Mountain Irrigation District (BMID) water supply area. 

 

4.4 Parcel Summary 

Parcel Size: 9.75 ha (24.1 ac) 
 Elevation: 506 masl to 530 masl 
 
       Map 2: Subject Property 

 
 
  

Subject  
Property 

Existing 
Farm Help 
Dwelling 

Location of 
Proposed RV 
Sites 

Location of 
Proposed Family 
Dwelling 

93



DVP14-0104 – Page 5 

 
 

Map 3: Southwest corner (All structures in this 2009 image have since been removed) 

 
 
Map 4 – ALR in the area  

 

94



DVP14-0104 – Page 6 

 
 

  Photo 1: Location of proposed fruit stand - corner of Gibson and McKenzie. 

 
 

 Photo 2: Location of proposed RV park - looking towards east neighbour. 

 

95



DVP14-0104 – Page 7 

 
 

 

4.5 Zoning of Adjacent Property 

The zoning of adjacent properties is outlined below. 

   Table 1: Zoning of Adjacent Property  

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use ALR 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 Agricultural Yes 

Northwest A1 – Agriculture 1 Rural Residential Yes 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 
Agricultural /  
Rural Residential 

Yes 

Southwest A1 – Agriculture 1 Agricultural Yes 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 
Agricultural /  
Rural Residential 

Yes 

West A1 – Agriculture 1 Agricultural Yes 

 

4.6 Subdivision and Development Criteria 

Subdivision and development criteria for the Agricultural A1t zone include the requirements 
as noted in the table below. 

Table 2: Subdivision and Development Criteria 

CRITERIA A1 (Agricultural) ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Subdivision Regulations 

Minimum Lot Area 4.0 hectare (2.0 hectare within the ALR) 

Minimum Lot Width 40.0 m 

Minimum Front Yard 6.0 m 

Minimum Setback from Fruit 

Stands 

15.0 m from any lot line (Note:  this will require a front yard  

variance for the Fruit Stand to accommodate homeplating 

prinicples) 

Minimum Rear Yard 10.0 m except it is 3.0 m for accessory buildings 

Maximum Site Coverage 
10% for residential development (inclusive of agri-tourist 
accommodation) and 35% for agricultural structures. 

Other Regulations 

Agri-tourist accommodation shall not be located on lots 
smaller than 4.0 ha in size. 

Agri-tourist accommodation units shall be permitted to the 
Table in Section 11.1.8 of the Zoning Bylaw No. 8000, where 
parcels from 9.0 to 9.99 permit a maximum of 9 units. 

 

  

96



DVP14-0104 – Page 8 

 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan: Greening Our Future 

Objective 5.33 Protect and enhance local agriculture3. 

Policy. 1 Protect Agricultural Land. Retain the agricultural land base by supporting the ALR and 
by protecting agricultural lands from development, except as otherwise noted in the City of 
Kelowna Agricultural Plan. Ensure that the primary use of agricultural land is agriculture,  

Objective 5.34 Preserve productive agricultural land4. 

Policy .3 Homeplating. Locate buildings and structures, including farm help housing and farm 
retail sales area and structures, on agricultural parcels in close proximity to one another and 
where appropriate, near the existing road frontage. The goal should be to maximize use of 
existing infrastructure and reduce impacts on productive agricultural lands. 

Farm Protection DP Guidelines5 

The objectives of the Farm Protection DP Guidelines are to: 

 protect farm land and farm operations; 

 minimize the impact of urban encroachment and land use conflicts on agricultural land; 
and 

 minimize conflicts created by activities designated as farm use by ALC regulation and non-
farm uses within agricultural areas. 

Guidelines6 

On agricultural lands, where appropriate, locate all buildings and structures, including farm 
help housing and farm retail sales, within a contiguous area (i.e. homeplate). Exceptions may be 
permitted where the buildings or structures are for farm use only. 

 

5.2 Technical Comments  

5.3 Building & Permitting Department 

1) Development Cost Charges (DCC’s) are required to be paid prior to issuance of any 
Building Permit(s) for new construction. 

2) Full Plan check for Building Code related issues will be done at time of Building 
Permit applications. 

5.4 Fire Department 

No concerns with the DVP. Ensure proper fire department access as per BC Building Code 3.2.5.6. 
Fire protection must be addressed a fire hydrant per regulations. 

5.5 Development Engineering Branch 

                                                
3 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (2011) – Development Process Chapter; p. 5.35.  
4 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (2011) – Development Process Chapter; p. 5.36.  
5 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (2011) – Farm Protection Development Permit Chapter; p. 15.2 – 15.4.  
6
 City of Kelowna 2030 Official Community Plan (2011) – Farm Protection Development Permit Chapter; p. 15.3  

97



DVP14-0104 – Page 9 

 
 

The Development Engineering Services comments and requirements regarding this application for 
a front and side rear setback variance from 15.0 m. to 6.0 m. are as follows: 

 
1.  General 
 

a) The requested rear yard variance setback does not compromise any Municipal 
Infrastructure Services. 
 

b) This application does not trigger any offsite upgrades. 

5.6 Shaw Cable  

Shaw cable approves proposed DVP application. 

5.7 Telus Communications 

No comment. 

5.8 Fortis BC 

No comment. 

6.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received:   May 29, 2014 
 
Public Notification & Consultation by Applicant:  
 
The fruit stand variance was included in the rezoning package which had standard notification 
and a public hearing on April 1st, 2014.   

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:     Todd Cashin, Manager,  
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 

 

Approved for Inclusion:   Shelley Gambacort, Director 
Subdivision, Agriculture & Environment Services 

   

Attachments:   

Subject Property Map 
Drawing A0 – Photos of Site 
Drawing A1- Overall Site Plan 
Drawing A5 – Fruit Stand Plan 
Drawing A6 – Fruit Stand Elevations 

98



DVP14-0104 – Page 10 

 
 

 

99



100



101



102



103



104



 

 

CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 Development Variance Permit No.:  DVP14-0104 

 

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
 
DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT: 

 

A1 – Agriculture 1 

 
 

Section 11.1.6 (f): Development Regulations – Front and Side 
Yard Setback 

  

 

 
ISSUED TO:           Robert Holden (K. or B. or A. Gill) 
  

  LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE:  375 Gibson Road 

 

 

 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 
 

 4 25   26 ODYD 
Plan 1760 Except Plan 

KAP60715 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for a Development Permit and/or Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a 
Permit limits the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw 
unless specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be 
granted by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been 
identified as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 

 
1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 
THAT variances to the following sections of Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 are granted: 
 
Section 11.1.6 (f): Development Regulations 
 
To vary the maximum distance for an agricultural and garden stand from 15.0 metres permitted to any lot line 
to 6.0 metres proposed, according to Schedule A (R. Holding Drawing A1- Rev. 0). 

 
2. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and provisions 

of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part hereof. 
 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of this 

Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 

105



- 2 - 
  DVP14--0104 

 

 
 This Permit is not transferrable unless specifically Permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer the 

Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 

3 PERFORMANCE SECURITY: Not applicable. 
 
  
4. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in support 

of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the Permit for me by 
the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually indemnify the 
Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property owned 
in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, directly or 
indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, the 

Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any building or 
part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works or other works 
called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and Divisional Director 
of Community Planning and Real Estate. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the Subdivision, 
Agriculture & Environment Branch immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the application. 
 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

 
6. APPROVALS: 
 

DEVELOPMENT VARIANCE PERMIT AUTHORIZED BY THE COUNCIL ON THE ____  DAY OF JULY, 2014.. 

 

ISSUED BY THE DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND REAL ESTATE OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA  

ON THE ___ DAY OF JULY, 2014. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 

Divisional Director, Community Planning & Real Estate 

106



107


	Agenda
	3. Minutes - July 29, 2014 Public Hearing.pdf
	3. Minutes - July 29, 2014 Regular Meeting.pdf
	4.1 Bylaw No. 10987 (Z14-0018).pdf
	4.2 Bylaw No. 10989 (Z14-0017).pdf
	4.3 Bylaw No. 10991 (Z14-0024).pdf
	6.1 2014 08 12 Report DVP14-0092 2282 Aberdeen St .docx
	6.1 2014 08 12 Attachments DVP14-0092 2282 Aberdeen St.pdf
	6.1 DRAFT Permit .pdf
	6.2 Bylaw No. 10403 (Z10-0044).pdf
	6.2.1 2014 08 12 Report DP14-0137 DVP10-0076 120 Homer Rd.docx
	6.2.1 2014 08 12 Attachments DP14-0137 DVP10-0076 120 Homer Rd.pdf
	6.3 Bylaw No. 10968 (OCP14-0006).pdf
	6.3.1 Bylaw No. 10969 (Z14-0008).pdf
	6.3.2 2014 08 12 Report DP14-0041_DVP14-0042 McKay Ave.docx
	6.3.2 2014 08 12 Attachments DP14-0041 DVP14-0042 McKay Ave.pdf
	6.4 2014 08 12 Report DVP14-0104 375 Gibson Road.docx
	6.4 2014 08 12 Attachments DVP14-0104 375 Gibson Rd.pdf
	6.4 DVP14-0104 DVP Permit.docx
	6.4 DVP0104 Schedule A.pdf

